
* GVR encourages members to voice concerns and comments in a professional, business-like, and respectful manner.

AGENDA 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 

Wednesday, November 15, 2023 - 2pm 
West Center Auditorium / Zoom 

*Code of Conduct

Directors:  Marge Garneau (President), Carol Crothers (Vice President), Bart Hillyer (Secretary), 
Jim Carden (Treasurer), Barbara Blake (Assistant Secretary), Joe Magliola (Assistant Treasurer), Nancy 
Austin, Kathi Bachelor, Beth Dingman, Steve Gilbert, Bev Lawless, Richard Sutherland, Scott Somers  
(non-voting) 

AGENDA TOPIC 
1. Call to Order / Roll Call – Establish Quorum

2. Amend/Adopt Agenda

3. President’s Report

4. CEO Report

5. Member Comments – regarding Consent Agenda and/or Non-Agenda Items – Speakers are asked to provide their name
and GVR member number. Please limit comments to two (2) minutes.

6. Committee Reports
A. Audit
B. Board Affairs
C. Fiscal Affairs
D. Investments
E. Nominations & Elections
F. Planning & Evaluation

7. Consent Agenda – Consent Agenda items are routine items of business that are collectively presented for approval
through a single motion. A Board member may request that an item be pulled from the Consent Agenda and placed under
Action Items for separate discussion and action.
A. Minutes:

1) BOD Regular Meeting Minutes: October 25, 2023

8. Action Items
A. Approve Annual Budget and All Fees (Webster)

1) Operating Budget with Recommended Fee Schedule
2) Capital Plan and Capital Budget

B. Award of Contract for Del Sol Clubhouse and Approve Additional Funds Outside the Contract (Jund)

9. Member Comments - Please limit comments to two (2) minutes.

10. Adjournment



MINUTES 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Wednesday, October 25, 2023 - 2pm 
West Center Auditorium / Zoom 

Directors:  Marge Garneau (President), Carol Crothers (Vice President), Bart Hillyer (Secretary), 
Jim Carden (Treasurer), Joe Magliola (Assistant Treasurer), Nancy Austin, Kathi Bachelor, Steve 
Gilbert, Bev Lawless, Richard Sutherland, Scott Somers (non-voting) 

Director Absent: Barbara Blake, Beth Dingman 

Staff Present: David Jund (Facilities Director), Nanci Moyo (Administrative Supervisor), David 
Webster (CFO), Kris Zubicki (Member Services Director) 

Visitors:  11 

AGENDA TOPIC 
1. Call to Order / Roll Call – Establish Quorum

The President being in the chair and the Secretary being present.
President Garneau called the meeting to order at 2pm MST. Secretary Hillyer called the roll;
quorum established.

2. Amend/Adopt Agenda
MOTION: Director Sutherland moved, Director Magliola seconded to adopt the Agenda.
Passed: unanimous

3. President Report
• Public Censure of Director Lawless’ behavior which violated the GVR Board of

Directors’ Code of Conduct as set forth in the Corporate Policy Manual (CPM).

4. CEO Report
• Santa Rita Springs Glass Arts space: major construction phase is completed;

anticipating a December opening date.
• Del Sol Clubhouse and parking lot: Clubhouse project is in the preconstruction phase;

civil and engineering drawings, and architectural drawings have been submitted to
Pima County for permit. The project has been sent to six general contractors, and
posted publicly with bids due November 1, 2023. The Board will be asked to award a
contract at the November 15 meeting. Construction could begin in early December.

• Canoa Hills Center: contractor estimates the end of November for completion of the
locker rooms; other remodel work will continue through the end of the year; hoping
for an opening in December; pool decks have been resurfaced and pool deck furniture
has been received; and tennis courts scheduled to be resurfaced in November.

• West Center expansion for Lapidary, Woodworking, and Artisans: concept drawings
will be finished in November, along with estimated costs.

1

Consent Agenda A.1



• Club Funding Requests for 2023: upgrade of the vacuum system for the Woodshop
construction documents has been approved by Pima County, building permit was
issued, and a mechanical contractor is scheduled to begin work the end of October.

5. Member Comments: 2

6. Presentations:
A. Quarterly Financial Report

CFO David Webster presented the 3rd Quarter Financial Report with these highlights:
• Revenue received through the 3rd Quarter was $8,712,281 which is 5.3 percent

under what was budgeted for this period. Capital Revenue is primarily the
money received when homes are sold which is 18.6 percent under budget.

• Expense side of GVR is under budget by four percent.
• Projection for the year is to end with a $163,000 surplus. Due to home sales

still being low the surplus might be cut in half to roughly $80,000.
• Due to projects at GVR, there has been a decline in Designated Investments.

This money is being spent on the projects, as designed, and is not a loss.
• Investment performance is performing in the positive but not quite to the

benchmark.
B. Form 990

Ralph Gigliotti, R&A CPAs, introduced David Samer, Tax Manager, to review Form 990:
• Form 990 is audited by the IRS at a rate less than one percent. Form 990 is not

an audit trigger.
• Focus on the Form 990 is in regards to Self-Dealing (any transaction that results

in an excess benefit), Unrelated Business Income (a business unrelated to the
exempt purpose), and Statement of Revenue by Function (exempt function
income and exempt investment income).

7. Committee Reports - All reports received and placed on file.
A. Audit
B. Board Affairs
C. Fiscal Affairs
D. Investments
E. Nominations & Elections
F. Planning & Evaluation

8. Consent Agenda
MOTION: Director Carden moved, Director Bachelor seconded to approve the Consent
Agenda.
Director Sutherland stated there is a minor correction to the October 18, 2023, Minutes:
under Agenda Topic 3, third bullet point the number needs to read $14,657,789 not 780.
Passed: unanimous
A. Minutes:
 BOD Regular Meeting Minutes: September 27, 2023
 BOD Work Session Minutes: October 18, 2023

B. Financial Statements:
 September Financials

2



9. Action Items
A. Set Record Date

MOTION: Director Garneau moved, Director Bachelor seconded to approve the Record
Date of January 30, 2024.
Passed: unanimous

B. Investment Committee Change to Initiatives Benchmark
MOTION: Director Gilbert moved, Director Lawless seconded to approve change to
Initiatives Account as follows: ML 91-Day T-Bill 70 percent, Bloomberg Intermediate 20
percent, Average Term 1.0 year.
Passed: unanimous

10. Member Comments – 0 

11. Adjournment
MOTION: Director Hillyer moved, Director Sutherland seconded to adjourn the meeting at
2:43pm.
Passed: unanimous

3



Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 

Board of Directors Meeting
            Operating Budget with Fee Schedule 

Prepared By: David Webster, CFO       Meeting Date: November 15, 2023 

Presented By: David Webster, CFO   Consent Agenda: No 

Originating Committee / Department: 
Fiscal Affairs Committee 

Action Requested: 
Approve the Proposed 2024 Operations Budget and 2024 Fee Schedule. 

Strategic Plan Goal: 
Goal 4: Cultivate and maintain a sound financial base that generates good value for our 
members. 

Background Justification: 
GVR Staff developed and presented the 2024 Budget Proposal to the Fiscal Affairs Committee 
(FAC) at an open meeting on October 17.  After that meeting, the Budget was revised for FAC 
recommendations as follows: 

Description 2024 Budget Amount 
Increase the Tenant Fee rates (see Fee 
Schedule) 

Increase 
Revenue 

$3,850 

Increase the annual Guest card rate from $70 
to $75 

Increased 
Revenue 

$7,000 

Revise Del Sol Personnel to start April 1, 2024 
rather than January 1, 2024 

Decreased 
Expenses 

$33,800 

Add minimal Revenue estimate for Del Sol 
Clubhouse Café 

Increase 
Revenue 

$25,000 

Add Marketing Expense Line Item for potential 
Opt In Members 

Increased 
Expenses 

($5,000) 

Use the CPM CPI guide for establishing future 
year forecasted dues rates. 

No effect on 
2024 Budget 

$0 

Revise the amount used for annual future 
surpluses from $250,000 per year to $100,000 
per year 

No effect on 
2024 Budget 

$0 

Reduce MCF Revenue to projected 993 home 
sales in 2024 

Decrease 
Revenue 

($64,650) 

Total of Adjustments Surplus $0 

4

Action Item A.1



The fee rates that were recommended by the FAC are as follows: 

2024 Rate FAC Recommendation 
Annual Dues per 
Household  $    515 Increase from $510 to $515 
Annual Life Care 
Member Dues  $    515 Increase from $510 to $515 
Transfer Fee (Resale)  $    450 
Guest Card Fees  $   75 Increase from $70 to $75 
Daily Guest Card  $   10 
Tenant Fees: 

1-7 Days  $   30 Increase from $25 to $30 
 2 Weeks  $   40 Increase from $35 to $40 
 1 Month  $   55 Increase from $50 to $55 
 2 Months  $   90 Increase from $85 to $90 
 3 Months  $    130 Increase from $125 to $130 
4-12 Months  $    165 Increase from $155 to $165 

Additional Card Fees  $    100 
Membership Change 
Fee  $     3,000 Increase from $2,900 to $3,000 
Initial Fee  $     3,000 Increase from $2,900 to $3,000 
Late Fees  $   20 

The 2024 Budget was recommended for Board approval: 

MOTION: Johnson moved/ seconded for vote to approve budget as amended. 
Passed: unanimous 

The revised 2nd Draft that included FAC recommended changes was presented to the Board 
of Directors at the Budget Work Session on October 18, 2023.   

The Board is being asked to consider approving the enclosed Proposed 2024 operating 
Budget as recommended by FAC.  This approval will meet the CPM guideline for the board to 
approve and execute the budget no later than November 15th . (CPM Section 1. 1.1.2.6.B, 
page 64)   

Fiscal Impact: 
The proposed Operating Budget includes revenue due to the preceding rate changes and 
Operating expenses that are guided by the actual expenses of operating the recreational 
facilities of GVR (Bylaws Article III Section 1, page 3) 

5



Board Options: 
The Board may: 

1. Approve the proposed FAC Recommended 2024 Operational Budget with
corresponding Fee Schedule.

2. Recommend an alternative 2024 Operating Budget and Fee Schedule.
3. Reject the proposal and provide instructions for developing an alternative Budget and

Fee Schedule.

Staff Recommendation: 
Option 1 

Recommended Motion: 
Move to approve the proposed FAC recommended 2024 Operational Budget with 
corresponding Fee Schedule. 

Attachments: 
1) 2024 Budget Message including: 2024 Proposed Summary Operating Budget - FAC

Recommended, 2024 Fees Schedule - FAC Recommended, 2024 Budgeted Wages
Memorandum

6



7

Attachment 1



THE BUDGET PROCESS 

GVR operates on a fiscal year, running from January 1 to December 31. The budget 

process begins in August with guidelines issued to department directors by the Chief 

Executive Officer (CEO). Departmental requests are prepared and submitted in August. 

The CEO and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) meet with each department director to 

discuss their requests. Changes and revisions to the requests and revenue projections 

are incorporated into the Proposed Budget which is submitted to the Board of Directors 

in October for consideration. 

The CEO and CFO hold meetings with the Planning and Evaluation Committee, Fiscal 

Affairs Committee and Board of Directors in September and October to assist with 

budget preparation. In accordance with GVR's Corporate Policy Manual (CPM), the 

budget must be available to the Board for approval no later than November 15. 

The basis of budgeting conforms to generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as 

required by Bylaws Article VII, Section 4. D. The 2023 projected income and expenses 

are included for comparison purposes and are GVR's best estimates at this time. 

Included with the 2024 Proposed Budget is a 3-year projection for the years 2025 

through 2027 that is for analytical purposes only. 

The 2024 Proposed Budget that is presented includes the following services: 

GVR Administrative Services: Information Technology, Finance, Membership, Board 

of Directors, Nominations and Elections, Administration, Human Resources, 

Communications. 

GVR Recreation Services: Recreation, Concerts, Special Events, Movies, Tours, 

Classes, Volunteers, Sound and Lighting. 

GVR Facilities Services: Maintenance, Aquatics, Landscaping, Custodial. 

2 

8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 

Board of Directors Meeting
2024 Capital Budget and  

Five-Year Capital Improvement Plan 

Prepared By: David Webster, CFO      Meeting Date: November 15, 2023 

Presented By: David Webster, CFO     Consent Agenda: No 

Originating Committee / Department: 
Fiscal Affairs Committee 

Action Requested: 
Approve the Proposed 2024 Capital Budget and Five-Year Capital Improvement Plan. 

Strategic Plan Goal: 
Goal 1: Provide excellent facilities for members to participate in a variety of active and social 
opportunities  
Goal 4: Cultivate and maintain a sound financial base that generates good value for our 
members 

Background Justification: 
GVR Staff facilitated a capital improvement project brainstorming and priority setting 
exercise with the Planning and Evaluation Committee (P&E) on October 9, 2023.  The P&E 
provided the following recommended list of capital project priorities and motion to the GVR 
Board of Directors for consideration: 

MOTION: Gallegos moved / Bachelor seconded to amend the previous motion of 
September 26, 2023, and substitute the following motion, which is: The Committee 
prioritized various projects into a list of 1 through 13. 

1. Finish Del Sol Clubhouse
2. West Center Expansion – Lapidary, Woodshop, Artisans’
3. Ceramics Kiln Room Upgrades
5. West Center Improvements – Member Services Center & Membership

(tied vote)
5. Canoa Hills Gymnasium (Tied vote)
6. Additional Security Cameras
7. Lazy River
8. Permanent Metal Workers space
9. Las Campanas Fitness Center Expansion (Tied vote)
10. Outdoor Pavilion at East Center (Tied vote)
11. Desert Hills Yoga Studio
13. Desert Hills Locker Room Expansion (Tied vote)
13. Santa Rita Springs Fitness Expansion (Tied vote)

28



Staff is to, based on the priorities, populate the 5-year Capital Plan recommendation to the 
Board for Consideration. 
Passed: unanimous 

The 2024 P&E recommended Capital Improvement Plan was then presented to  the Fiscal 
Affairs Committee (FAC) at their meeting on October 17th.  The FAC developed the following 
recommendation to the GVR Board of Directors concerning the Capital Budget (the first year 
of the Five-Year Capital Improvement Plan.   

MOTION: Johnson moved/ seconded for vote to approve the 2024 budget as amended. 
Passed: unanimous 

The revised 2nd Draft that included FAC recommended changes was presented to the Board 
of Directors at the Budget Work Session on October 18, 2023.   

The Board is being asked to consider approving the enclosed Proposed Five-Year Capital 
Improvement Plan and the 2024 Capital Budget as recommended by P&E and the FAC.  
Approval of the 2024 Capital Budget will meet the CPM guideline for the board to approve 
and execute the budget no later than November 15. (CPM Section 1. 1.1.2.6.B, page 64)   

Fiscal Impact: 
The proposed Capital Budget includes the following: 

• FY 2024 Initiatives Capital Improvement Plan   $2,143,000 
• FY 2024 Non-Reserve Capital Projects  $227,000 
• FY 2024 Maintenance Repair & Replacement Capital Budget   $1,369,273
Total Capital Budget for 2024                                                               $3,739,273

Board Options: 
The Board may: 

1. Approve the proposed FAC Recommended 2024 Capital Budget and Five-Year Capital
Improvement Plan

2. Recommend an alternative 2024 Capital Budget and Five-Year Capital Improvement
Plan

3. Reject the proposals and provide instructions for developing an alternative Capital
Budget and Five-Year Capital Improvement Plan

Staff Recommendation: 
Option 1 

Recommended Motion: 
Move to approve the 2024 Capital Budget and Five-Year Capital Improvement Plan as 
presented. 

Attachments: 
1) 2024 Budget Message including: 2024 Proposed Capital Budget and 2024 Five-year

Capital Improvement Plan

29



30

Attachment 1



THE BUDGET PROCESS 

GVR operates on a fiscal year, running from January 1 to December 31. The budget 

process begins in August with guidelines issued to department directors by the Chief 

Executive Officer (CEO). Departmental requests are prepared and submitted in August. 

The CEO and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) meet with each department director to 

discuss their requests. Changes and revisions to the requests and revenue projections 

are incorporated into the Proposed Budget which is submitted to the Board of Directors 

in October for consideration. 

The CEO and CFO hold meetings with the Planning and Evaluation Committee, Fiscal 

Affairs Committee and Board of Directors in September and October to assist with 

budget preparation. In accordance with GVR's Corporate Policy Manual (CPM), the 

budget must be available to the Board for approval no later than November 15. 

The basis of budgeting conforms to generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as 

required by Bylaws Article VII, Section 4. D. The 2023 projected income and expenses 

are included for comparison purposes and are GVR's best estimates at this time. 

Included with the 2024 Proposed Budget is a 3-year projection for the years 2025 

through 2027 that is for analytical purposes only. 

The 2024 Proposed Budget that is presented includes the following services: 

GVR Administrative Services: Information Technology, Finance, Membership, Board 

of Directors, Nominations and Elections, Administration, Human Resources, 

Communications. 

GVR Recreation Services: Recreation, Concerts, Special Events, Movies, Tours, 

Classes, Volunteers, Sound and Lighting. 

GVR Facilities Services: Maintenance, Aquatics, Landscaping, Custodial. 

2 

31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 

Board of Directors Regular Meeting 

Del Sol Clubhouse Tenant Improvement 
Prepared By: David Jund, Facilities Director Meeting Date: November 15, 2023 

Presented By: David Jund, Facilities Director    Consent Agenda: No 

Originating Committee / Department: 
Administration 
Action Requested: 
Award construction contract for the tenant improvement of the Del Sol Clubhouse. 
Strategic Plan Goal: 
Goal 1: Provide excellent facilities for members to participate in a variety of active and social 
opportunities 

Background Justification: 
The Board of Directors was asked to provide clarity concerning the future of the Del Sol 
Clubhouse on November 16, 2022. Please see the attached Staff Report and Minutes. 

The following motion passed giving clarity to staff on how to move forward: 

MOTION: Director Carden moved, Director Lawless seconded to continue moving forward 
with a vision of creating a social gathering recreation center. Build out the entire building 
to include the lower level to accommodate a minimum of 5 billiards and pool tables and 
other game-type activities, adding restrooms, a lift or elevator, and a stairwell to connect 
the two levels; and by seeking a solution to provide a wide variety of food and beverage 
options (such as a vendor). Passed: 9 yes / 2 no (Austin and Crothers) 

Working with Seaver Franks Architects (SFA), a concept design for the Del Sol Clubhouse was 
developed and reviewed at the May 17, 2023, Board Work Session. Please see the attached 
Staff Report and Minutes. 

Highlights of the May 17 plan included: 
• Del Sol Clubhouse has two levels. The upper level has the main entrance, ADA
accessible bathrooms, bar, kitchen area, staircase in the middle to connect
upper and lower floors, recreation area includes three pool tables, foosball
table, darts, and room with poker tables, and outdoor patio space. The lower level will
include at least 5 billiard tables and at least one snooker table, due to expansion possibilities.
This level will be a great billiard hall. Bathrooms
on the lower level will have access from inside the space and from outside for the walkers on
the County’s waking path.
• The estimated budget for the Del Sol Clubhouse is $1.2 million.
• Pima County will be asked to assist with the cost of the bathrooms on the lower level due
to the use of the County walking path

55

Action Item B



Discussion on the next steps for the Del Sol Clubhouse following the May 17 Work Session 
was brought to the Board at the May 24, 2023, regular meeting. The Board was asked to give 
staff direction to work with the architect to develop construction documents and once 
documents were developed, the architect will apply for permits and staff will go out for bid 
for construction. After bids are received, staff will come back to the Board with a 
recommendation to award a contract for Del Sol Clubhouse. Please see the attached Staff 
Report and Minutes. 

The following motion passed at this meeting:  

MOTION: Director Dingman moved, Director Blake seconded to continue moving forward 
with developing the architectural plans and construction documents for creating a social 
gathering, recreation center at the Del Sol Clubhouse. 
Passed: unanimous 

Staff engaged SFA to move forward with developing construction documents for submittal to 
Pima County for approval and permit.  

On September 14, 2023, SFA submitted completed construction documents to Pima County 
for review and approval.  

Invitations to Bid packages were sent out to 6 qualified commercial general contractors and 
posted on the GVR website on September 27.  

GVR held a pre-bid site walk with all interested general contractors on October 4th. 

A due date of November 1, 2023, was set for receipt of bid submittals.  

Staff received 1 formal bid by the due date and time. Staff estimates that Pima County will 
issue a permit to construct around November 28, 2023. 

Building Excellence, LLC of Tucson, Arizona submitted a complete bid proposal based on the 
County approved construction documents with a build out cost of $1,083,943.  

The Contractor estimates a 109-day project with a projected start date of December 4, 2023, 
and a completion date of May 6, 2024. 

In reviewing the Scope of Work for value engineering possibilities and taking into 
consideration the list of additional items, there may be a savings of a potential $31,750.50 if 
staff were to hire out some of the trades and tasks. By staff contracting work and not asking 
the awarded general contractor to include and revise their bid price, GVR would save by not 
increasing the contractor’s General Conditions (GC’s), Overhead & Profit (OH&P) and taxes. 
Below is an estimated increase to the contractor’s bid for including additional items outside 
of their original bid and potential savings for staff to hire out the additional items. 

GC's (assumes for 2 additional weeks)   $   16,000.00 
Kitchen buildout and equipment   $     85,000.00   
Fire Alarm Panel  $   45,000.00 
MEP (Kitchen)  $   15,000.00 
Millwork (Kitchen)  $   10,000.00 
Landscaping  $   15,000.00 
Exterior Paint  $     8,000.00 
Taxes  $     5,450.00 
OH&P  $   10,300.50 

56



Total  $ 209,750.50 
Total w/o GC's, Taxes, OH&P  $   178,000.00 
Cost savings  $   31,750.50 

Part of the Scope of Work of the project are parking lot upgrades and 2 lower-level 
restrooms. Both of these items are seen by GVR staff and Pima County as assets directly and 
positively impacting the users of the adjacent Pima County walking paths. Previous talks were 
had with Pima County on the subject of cost-sharing assistance in regards to parking lot 
upgrades and buildout of the lower-level restrooms.  

With a bid proposal in hand, staff will seek a breakout cost estimate for these 2 items from 
the contractor and revisit a funding commitment from the County for funding assistance in 
building out the full scope of the project particular to parking lot upgrades and the lower-
level restrooms.  

Pima County requires 80 regular parking spaces for the Del Sol Clubhouse. The parking lot 
currently provides 107 regular parking spaces between the large and small lots. The County 
also requires an additional 5 accessible parking spaces.  

Fiscal Impact: 
The Staff Report for the May 24, 2023, Board of Directors meeting had the project cost 
estimated at $1,200,000 which was earmarked under the Initiatives Fund on the Long-term 
Capital Projects Plan (5-year Capital Improvement Plan). 

Below are Options for constructing the project: 

Option 1: 
Construction Contract per Construction Drawings: 

• Building improvements
o Game Room – lower level
o restrooms
o stairs

• Parking lot improvements
o trenching & repairs
o installation of light poles
o parking lot improvements for lower level due to ADA requirements
o demo and grading changes (allows for changes to lower parking lot, better

access)
o seal coat of most of parking lot
o striping

Cost: 

• Construction Contract: $1,203,177

Option 2: 
Construction Contract per Construction Drawings: (without the costs of full 
parking lot upgrades)  

57



• Building improvements
o Game Room – lower level
o restrooms
o stairs

• Parking lot improvements
o trenching & repairs
o installation of light poles
o parking lot improvements for lower level due to ADA requirements

Estimated Cost: 

• Construction Contract: $1,101,057

Option 3: 
Construction Contract per Construction Drawings (all-inclusive with additional parking lot 
upgrades outside of the Construction Drawings): 

• Building improvements
o Game Room – lower level
o restrooms
o stairs

• Parking lot improvements
o trenching & repairs
o installation of light poles
o parking lot improvements for lower level due to ADA Requirements

o demo and grading changes (allows for changes to lower parking lot, better access)
o Additional demo
o Additional landscaping
o seal coat parking lot
o striping
o demo of barricaded road connecting parking lot to W Camino Urbano (HOA does not

allow us to use this road, without this would not be refinished and will remain
barricaded) (this is where the new landscaping would go)

Estimated Cost: 

• Construction Contract: $1,268,676

Board Options: 
1) Award Building Excellence, LLC the contract to construct the tenant improvement of

the Del Sol Clubhouse per Constructing Drawings in an amount not to exceed
$1,203,177and approve additional items to be separately contracted out and
executed by staff in an amount of $178,000 for a total of $1,381,177.

2) Award Building Excellence, LCC the contract to construct the tenant improvement of
the Del Sol Clubhouse per Construction Drawings at an estimated cost of $1,101,057
and to revise their bid proposal to exclude parking lot upgrades approve additional

58



items to be separately contracted out and executed by staff in an amount of $178,000 
for a total of $1,279,057. 

3) Award Building Excellence, LCC the contract to construct the tenant improvement of
the Del Sol Clubhouse per Construction Drawings and to revise their bid proposal to
include additional parking and landscaping upgrades outside of the Construction
Drawings at an estimated cost of $1,268,676 and approve additional items to be
separately contracted out and executed by staff in an amount of $178,000 for an
estimated amount of $1,446,676.

4) Provide alternate direction to staff.

Staff Recommendation: 
Option #1 

Recommended Motion:  
I move to award Building Excellence, LLC the contract to construct the tenant improvement of 
Del Sol Clubhouse at a cost not to exceed $1,203,177 and approve staff to seek value 
engineering opportunities and cost savings by contracting out the any additional items 
outside of the Scope of Work of the Construction Drawings at a cost not to exceed $178,000 
for a total cost of $1,381,177.  

Attachments: 
1) Staff Report and Minutes - November 16, 2022
2) Staff Report and Minutes - May 17, 2023
3) Staff Report and Minutes – May 24, 2023
4) Contract with Building Excellence, LLC.

59



Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 

Board of Directors Meeting 
Discussion and Potential Action on Del Sol Clubhouse Plans 

Prepared By: Nanci Moyo, Admin. Sup. Meeting Date: November 16, 2022 

Presented By: Scott Somers, CEO Consent Agenda: No 

Originating Committee / Department: 
Administration 

Action Requested: 
Discuss and develop a clearer vision for the Del Sol Clubhouse and direct staff 
how to move forward.  

Strategic Plan Goal: 
GOAL 1: Provide excellent facilities for members to participate in a variety of 
active and social opportunities. 

Background Justification: 
On February 10, 2022, the P&E Committee discussed, the then-called, Canoa 
Hills Clubhouse, and the motion passed unanimous for the P&E Committee to 
recommend to the Board of Directors to approve GVR staff to be permitted to 
make the upper floor of the Canoa Hills Clubhouse a usable drop-in space for 
members.  

The P&E Committee recommendation went to the Board of Directors on 
February 23, 2022. The staff report for that meeting stated: As part of making 
the upper level of the Canoa Hills Clubhouse usable for drop-in activities for 
GVR members, staff will be required to perform interior demolition work, 
replace flooring, paint the interior, replace HVAC units, refurbish the restrooms, 
replace plumbing fixtures, upgrade lighting fixtures, install proximity readers for 
center access and provide internet services.   

The Board of Directors minutes of February 23, 2022, stated the Amended 
Motion as: “Accept P&E Committee’s recommendations to make minimal 
improvements to the upper level of the Canoa Hills Clubhouse, a usable drop-in 
space for GVR Members…” This motion passed.  

60

Attachment 1



Staff has moved forward on upgrading the upper level of the, now called, Del 
Sol Clubhouse. 

Staff is now asking for the Board to develop and approve a vision for the club 
house since “usable drop-in space for GVR Members” is vague. Staff have 
continued with the notion that the entire building should be used as a means of 
creating a successful social gathering recreation center. As such, staff have 
looked for ways of activating the building by bring activities and food and 
beverage options to the clubhouse. For examples, staff have been in active 
discussions with the Billiards Club and billiards and pool players to move the 
Desert Hills Billiards space to the lower level of the clubhouse (allowing the 
Fitness Center expansion to occur), which helps support creating a game center 
at the clubhouse. Additionally, staff have regularly discussed with committees, 
the Board, and members the potential to create some kind of food and 
beverage serve in the upper lever bar area of the club house to encourage 
members social and leisure gathering.  

Members have regularly called for improved social gathering spaces. In 2016, a 
WSM outreach effort revealed that younger members wanted to see more 
“nightlife” opportunities at GVR. In 2018, 73% of respondents in a member 
survey supported development of “social and community gathering spaces.” In 
2021, outreach efforts utilized to develop the strategic plan revealed a common 
concern was the development of social gathering spaces.  

The approved Mission of the organization is, To provide excellent facilities and 
services that create opportunities for recreation, social activities, and leisure 
education to enhance the quality of life of or members’ lives.  

The approved Vision of the organization is, To be a friendly, vibrant community 
of choice for adults desiring lifelong opportunities for physical, mental, and 
social engagement.  

Goal 1 of the Strategic Plan is To provide excellent facilities for members to 
participate in a variety of active and social opportunities.  

Action Item 1.2.3 calls for researching and developing recommendations 
for providing food and beverage in certain centers.  
Action Item 1.4.1 call for exploring opportunities to establish a coffee 
shop, etc.  
Action Item 1.4.3 calls for identifying underutilized areas that could be 
used to encourage social gathering.  

61



The Board is asked to discuss how best to activate the clubhouse space in order 
to meet the requirements and expectations listed in the Strategic Plan and to 
provide direction to staff on how to move forward. 

Fiscal Impact: 
2022 Capital funding includes $50,000 and anticipates a minimum of $150,000 
in 2023. The staff estimate to bring the lower level up to code and to building 
out the space is approximately $900,000. These needed funds were approved in 
the 2023 Capital Fund Budget.  

Board Options: 
1. Continue moving forward with a vision of creating a social gathering

recreation center:
A. By building out the entire building to include the lower level to

accommodate a minimum of 5 billiards and pool tables and other
game-type activities, adding restrooms, a lift or elevator, and a
stairwell to connect the two levels; and by seeking a solution to
provide a wide variety of food and beverage options (such as a
vendor).

B. By building out ONLY the upper level to accommodate at least one
pool table and other game-type activities; and be seeking solutions to
provide limited food and beverage options (such as vending machines
or volunteers).

2. Provide alternate direction to staff.

Staff Recommendation: 
Options #1 

Recommended Motion: 
I motion to direct staff to continue moving forward with a vision of creating a 
social gathering recreation center at the Del Sol Clubhouse by building out the 
entire building to include the lower level to accommodate a minimum of 5 
billiards and pool tables and other game-type activities, adding restrooms, a lift 
or elevator, and a stairwell to connect the two levels; and by seeking a solution 
to provide a wide variety of food and beverage options (such as a vendor).  

Attachments: 
Strategic Plan 

62



GVR encourages the Board and members to voice concerns and comments in a professional, business-like, and respectful 
manner. 

MINUTES 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Wednesday, November 16, 2022 - 2pm 
West Center Auditorium / Zoom 

Directors:  Kathi Bachelor (President), Donna Coon (Vice President), *Bart Hillyer (Secretary), 
Carol Crothers (Treasurer), Laurel Dean (Assistant Secretary), Jim Carden (Assistant Treasurer), 
Nancy Austin, Barbara Blake, Ted Boyett, Beth Dingman, Steve Gilbert, Bev Lawless, Scott Somers 
(non-voting) 

Staff Present: David Jund (Facilities Director), Nanci Moyo (Administrative Supervisor), David 
Webster (CFO), Natalie Whitman (Communications Director), Kris Zubicki (Recreation Services 
Director) 

Visitors: 16 including support staff 

AGENDA TOPIC 
1. Call to Order / Roll Call – Establish Quorum

The President being in the chair and the Secretary being present.
President Bachelor called the meeting to order at 2:10pm MST. Secretary Hillyer called the
roll; quorum established.

2. Amend/Adopt Agenda
MOTION: Director Boyett moved, Director Carden seconded to adopt the Agenda.
Passed: unanimous

3. President Report – No report

4. CEO Report –
• East Center Pool replacement project moving forward and will be finished in the

coming week. The opening and ribbon cutting is scheduled for December 15.
• Desert Hills Fitness Center construction permits have been issued by Pima County.

Barker Contracting is scheduling the start up for this project. A banner will be hung to
highlight the project as it moves forward.

• Kino Room at Santa Rita Springs, home of the Computer Club, is completed. All
inspections have passed. The official opening is November 21.

• The Santa Cruz Room at Santa Rita Springs has new flooring and ballet bars installed.
This room is open for use.

• The future Arts and Crafts room, Agave Room at Santa Rita Springs, is scheduled to
open on November 30.

• Ceramics Club at Desert Hills will get the hand over from the art room on December 1.
The architect is developing further expansion to increase the width of the room to the
outdoor walkways.

63

Attachment 1



GVR encourages the Board and members to voice concerns and comments in a professional, business-like, and respectful 
manner. 

• The future Glass Arts space at Santa Rita Springs has had the preliminary design
update completed by WSM Architecture and reviewed by the Glass Arts Club. Final
designs are underway and the goal is for the Board to award a contract at the
December 14 Regular Meeting.

• The Del Sol Clubhouse architect is finalizing construction documents for the upper-
level restrooms to submit to Pima County this week. Staff is coordinating with the
contractor to begin construction on this project.

• The Lapidary and Metal Working Clubs have met with the architect many times to
identify space needs. The architect information will be provided in December and will
go to P&E Committee for recommendations to the Board.

5. Member Comments – There were no comments.

6. Presentation
A. Quarterly Financial Report

David Webster, CFO, presented the quarterly financial report. All financial reports can be
viewed on the GVR website: www.gvrec.org/gvr-financial-updates/

7. Consent Agenda
MOTION: Director Blake moved, Director Boyett seconded to approve the Consent Agenda.
Passed: unanimous
A. Minutes:
 BOD Regular Meeting Minutes: October 26, 2022

B. Financial Statements:
 October Financial Report

8. New Business
A. Safety and Security Measures

Scott Somers, CEO, explained the serious incident that occurred at Las Campanas and
measures that were taken immediately:

• Last week a naked man with a knife was in the women’s locker room. The woman
who was approached screamed and the man put on his shorts and ran off. No one
was injured.

• Immediate solutions were to lock some of the doors and gates at all facilities and
use as exit only. This has caused issues for members with disabilities and
inconveniences for those who use these doors for entry with the member card.
Staff is revisiting this issue and is looking closer at what gates and doors should
remain open to members. Staff is working on a balance to secure the facilities
while meeting ADA compliance and conveniences.

• Staff is working on having a security consultant provide best measures for security
for the facilities. If cameras are used it would not be to invade on member privacy
and would only be available for security monitoring.

• There will be a cost consideration for added security to the facilities. This will come
before the Board when the cost is known.

64



GVR encourages the Board and members to voice concerns and comments in a professional, business-like, and respectful 
manner. 

MOTION: Director Dean moved, Director Blake seconded to authorize staff to obtain 
quotes and draft contracts for Board approval to improve safety measures and protocols 
at all GVR facilities.    
Passed: unanimous 

B. CPM Part 3
BAC Chair Donna Coon presented the changes to CPM Part 3 Committees.
MOTION: Director Coon moved, Director Bachelor seconded that the Board review the
recommendations of the Board Affairs Committee and if approved by the Board make
changes to these recommendations to the Corporate Policy Manual Part 3 Committees.

Director Coon removed her Motion from the floor after a long discussion on the proposed
changes. It was decided to move this topic to the January work session before bringing it
to a vote at a Regular Board Meeting.

C. CPM Part 4
MOTION: Director Dean moved, Director Blake seconded to approve the Board Affairs
Committee recommendations for the changes in CPM Part 4 Chief Executive Officer and
approved the recommendations..
Passed: 9 yes / 1 no (Lawless) / 1 did not vote (Boyett)

Director Coon stated the Restated Bylaws were removed from the Board Regular Meeting
Agenda in October. The Board Affairs Committee (BAC) passed a motion at the November
8 BAC meeting to rescind the amended motion from the October 11, 2022, BAC meeting
and to forward to the Board of Directors the Restated Bylaws and instead to ask staff to
work with the attorney to make recommendations on future changes to the existing
Bylaws. The Restated Bylaws will not be going to the membership for a vote this year.

D. Discussion and Potential Action on Del Sol Clubhouse Plans
Scott Somers, CEO, asked for the Board to give clarity on Del Sol Clubhouse.

*Director Hillyer left the meeting.

MOTION: Director Carden moved, Director Lawless seconded to continue moving 
forward with a vision of creating a social gathering recreation center. Build out the 
entire building to include the lower level to accommodate a minimum of 5 billiards and 
pool tables and other game-type activities, adding restrooms, a lift or elevator, and a 
stairwell to connect the two levels; and by seeking a solution to provide a wide variety 
of food and beverage options (such as a vendor).  
Passed: 9 yes / 2 no (Austin and Crothers)  

Scott Somers clarified from the Las Campanas incident that all the names from the cards 
that were swiped on the day of the incident were turned over to the detective. There 
were 102 names turned over.  

9. Committee Reports – Committee Reports were not given.
A. Audit Austin 
B. Board Affairs Coon 

65



GVR encourages the Board and members to voice concerns and comments in a professional, business-like, and respectful 
manner. 

C. Fiscal Affairs Crothers 
D. Investments Lawless 
E. Nominations & Elections Dingman 
F. Planning & Evaluation Hillyer 

10. Member Comments – No member comments

11. Adjournment
Director Crothers moved, Director Carden seconded to adjourn the meeting at 4:25pm MST.
Passed: unanimous

66



Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 

Board of Directors Work Session 

Del Sol Clubhouse 
Prepared By: David Jund, Facilities Director Meeting Date: May 17, 2023 

Presented By: David Jund, Facilities Director 

Originating Committee / Department: 
Administration 

Action Requested: 
Review Del Sol Clubhouse high-level design drawings. 

Strategic Plan Goal: 
Goal 1: Provide excellent facilities for members to participate in a variety of active and social 
opportunities 

Background Justification: 
The Board of Directors is asked to review the high-level concept drawings of the Del Sol Clubhouse 
and parking lot.  At the November 16, 2022 regular meeting of the Board of Directors, the following 
motion was approved:   

MOTION: Director Carden moved, Director Lawless seconded to continue moving forward 
with a vision of creating a social gathering recreation center. Build out the entire building 
to include the lower level to accommodate a minimum of 5 billiards and pool tables and 
other game-type activities, adding restrooms, a lift or elevator, and a stairwell to connect 
the two levels; and by seeking a solution to provide a wide variety of food and beverage 
options (such as a vendor). Passed: 9 yes / 2 no (Austin and Crothers) 

Staff has continued on with the remodel of the upper floor restrooms. Seaver Franks 
Architects (SFA) provided staff with a review set of drawings of the build out and parking lot 
redesign. After staff reviewed the drawings, SFA was asked to move forward with developing 
construction documents to be submitted to Pima County for approval and permit.  

At the April 26, regular meeting of the Board of Directors it was ask of staff to provide high-
level drawings done by SFA for review by the Board at their May 24 regular meeting.   

Fiscal Impact: 
Project cost is estimated at $1,200,000 which is earmarked under the Initiatives Fund on the 
Long-term Capital Projects Plan. 

Attachments: 
1) Del Sol Clubhouse Review Set - SFA

67

Attachment 2



 GVR encourages the Board and members to voice concerns and comments in a professional, business-like, and respectful manner. 

MINUTES 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS WORK SESSION 

Wednesday, May 17, 2023, 10am 
WC Room 2 / Zoom 

Directors Present: Marge Garneau (President), Carol Crothers (Vice President), Bart Hillyer (Secretary), Jim 
Carden (Treasurer), *Barbara Blake (Assistant Secretary), Kathi Bachelor, Ted Boyett, Beth Dingman, Bev 
Lawless, Scott Somers (non-voting) 

Directors Absent: Laurel Dean, Nancy Austin, Steve Gilbert 

Staff Present: David Jund (Facilities Director), Nanci Moyo (Administrative Supervisor), David Webster (CFO), 
Natalie Whitman (COO), Kris Zubicki (Member Services Director)  

Visitors: 7 

AGENDA TOPIC 

1. Call to Order / Roll Call
Work Session Called to Order at 10:01am by President Garneau. Secretary Hillyer called the role.

2. Amend / Approve Agenda
MOTION: Director Boyett moved, Director Dingman seconded to approve the amended Agenda to
include discussion on the Photography Club request for Tenant Improvement.
Passed: unanimous

3. Del Sol Clubhouse
CEO Somers reviewed the plans for the Del Sol Clubhouse and the parking lot. Highlights include:

• Del Sol Clubhouse has two levels. The upper level has the main entrance, ADA accessible
bathrooms, bar area, kitchen area, staircase in the middle to connect upper and lower floors,
recreation area includes three pool tables, foosball table, darts, and room with poker tables,
and outdoor patio space. The lower level will include at least 5 billiard tables and at least one
snooker table, due to expansion possibilities. This level will be a great billiard hall. Bathrooms
on the lower level will have access from inside the space and from outside for the walkers on
the County path.

• The budget for the Del Sol Clubhouse is $1.2 million.
• Pima County will be asked to assist with the cost of the bathrooms on the lower level due to

the use of the County walking path.

*Barbara Blake arrived at 10:11am

Highlights from Board/Staff discussion: 
• Discussion on how many parking places is needed per the occupancy of Del Sol Clubhouse.

Have architect review the spaces needed in their reports.
• Install access for GVR members to use member card for the outside bathroom when

bathrooms are locked to the public in the evenings.

68

Attachment 2



 GVR encourages the Board and members to voice concerns and comments in a professional, business-like, and respectful manner. 

• Del Sol Clubhouse will be on the Board Regular Meeting on May 24, 2023, for an approval to
move forward with construction documents and for architectural report on number of parking
spaces needed per occupancy of the Clubhouse.

4. Lapidary/Woodshop Expansion
CEO Somers reviewed Lapidary and Woodshop Clubs expansions. Highlights include:

• Primary goal is to consolidate the three Lapidary locations including East Center and Desert
Hills to the West Center, building out to the easement on the west side of the building and
south side for the Woodshop.

• Staff will meet with Lapidary and Woodshop to fine tune their needs and present to the Board
for next steps. The project is still in the planning and discussion stages and is not ready for
architectural/construction documents.

• A survey conducted by the Lapidary Club showed the members were optimistic about
expanding the West Center space and not to build an Art Center at West Center. There is
strong interest from the Club members as a whole to consolidate Desert Hills to West Center.

• For 2023 there is a $50,000 budget for Lapidary and a $30,000 budget for Woodshop for
studies and conceptual drawings from the Initiatives Fund.

Highlights from Board/Staff discussion include: 
• This is early in the planning stages and will not come before the Board at the next regular

meeting in May.
• The Board is comfortable with staff working on discussions with both clubs and reviewing

possibilities.
• Preliminary work was completed with the architects and the clubs providing a high-level

drawing pushing out the west and south walls. Cost estimates will be provided as the process
moves forward.

5. Ceramics Expansion
CEO Somers reviewed the Ceramics Expansion including these highlights:

• The budget is $150,000 this year for the Ceramics expansion.
• The Ceramics expansion will be considered after the decision for Lapidary is finalized. If

Lapidary is consolidated at the West Center it will open up space for the expansion of Ceramics
into that space.

• Two options: 1) Build out Ceramics into the sidewalk which will give Ceramics a total of 3,488
square feet of space. 2) Utilize the Lapidary space at Desert Hills which will make the Ceramics
space a total of 3600 square feet and is the most cost-effective expansion.

• The existing kiln room needs to be built to code.
• There is a possibility for the Ceramics Club to utilize the fitness room for temporary storage for

their molds. This will be the time for the Club to sort through the molds and figure out how to
store efficiently.

Highlights from Board/Staff discussion: 
• Keep kilns where they currently are so not to cause a disruption to the club. Staff will discuss

with the architects how to move this forward. If the kiln room is done first, it will lock the
decision for Ceramics into option 2.

• Wheelchairs and walkers can use the room currently – it is just difficult.
• This will not go forward to the Board at this time.
• The Board is leaning to Option 2 and this helps give staff direction.

6. Capital Projects Policy and Process
CEO Somers reviewed the work on the Capital Projects Policy and Process and held a lengthy
discussion with the Board.

69



 GVR encourages the Board and members to voice concerns and comments in a professional, business-like, and respectful manner. 

Staff will rewrite the Capital Projects Policy and Process using items from the discussion and bring 
before the Board in a June Work Session.    

7. Photography Club
President Garneau asked the Board to review the Photography Club request. This will come before the
Board at the May 24, 2023, Regular Meeting for approval.

Adjournment: The Work Session was adjourned at 12:44pm. 

70



Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 

Board of Directors Work Session 

Del Sol Clubhouse 
Prepared By: David Jund, Facilities Director Meeting Date: May 24, 2023 

Presented By: David Jund, Facilities Director 

Originating Committee / Department: 
Administration 

Action Requested: 
Review Del Sol Clubhouse high-level design drawings. 

Strategic Plan Goal: 
Goal 1: Provide excellent facilities for members to participate in a variety of 
active and social opportunities 

Background Justification: 
The Board of Directors is asked to review the high-level concept drawings of the 
Del Sol Clubhouse and parking lot.  At the November 16, 2022 regular meeting 
of the Board of Directors, the following motion was approved:   

MOTION: Director Carden moved, Director Lawless seconded to continue 
moving forward with a vision of creating a social gathering recreation center. 
Build out the entire building to include the lower level to accommodate a 
minimum of 5 billiards and pool tables and other game-type activities, adding 
restrooms, a lift or elevator, and a stairwell to connect the two levels; and by 
seeking a solution to provide a wide variety of food and beverage options 
(such as a vendor). Passed: 9 yes / 2 no (Austin and Crothers) 

Staff has continued on with the remodel of the upper floor restrooms. Seaver 
Franks Architects (SFA) provided staff with a review set of drawings of the build 
out and parking lot redesign. After staff reviewed the drawings, SFA was asked 
to move forward with developing construction documents to be submitted to 
Pima County for approval and permit.  

At the April 26, regular meeting of the Board of Directors it was ask of staff to 
provide high-level drawings done by SFA for review by the Board at their May 
24 regular meeting.   

71

Attachment 3



Fiscal Impact: 
Project cost is estimated at $1,200,000 which is earmarked under the Initiatives 
Fund on the Long-term Capital Projects Plan. 

Board Options: 
1. Direct staff to continue moving forward with the developing construction

documents for the Del Sol Club house and parking lot.
2. Provide alternate direction to staff.

Staff Recommendation: 
Option #1 

Recommended Motion:  
Move to continue moving forward with developing construction documents for 
creating a social gathering recreation center at the Del Sol Clubhouse.  

Attachments: 
1) Del Sol Clubhouse Review Set - SFA

72



GVR encourages the Board and members to voice concerns and comments in a professional, business-like, and respectful 
manner. 

MINUTES 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
Wednesday, May 24, 2023, 2pm 
West Center Auditorium / Zoom 

Directors:  Marge Garneau (President), Carol Crothers (Vice President), *Bart Hillyer (Secretary), 
Jim Carden (Treasurer), Barbara Blake (Assistant Secretary), Nancy Austin, Kathi Bachelor, Ted 
Boyett, Beth Dingman, Steve Gilbert, Bev Lawless, Scott Somers  
(non-voting) 

Director Absent: Laurel Dean 

Staff Present: David Jund (Facilities Director), Nanci Moyo (Administrative Supervisor), David 
Webster (CFO), Natalie Whitman (COO), Kris Zubicki (Member Services Director) 

Visitors: 21 including support staff 

AGENDA TOPIC 
1. Call to Order / Roll Call – Establish Quorum

The President being in the chair and the Secretary being present.
President Garneau called the meeting to order at 2:03pm MST. Secretary Hillyer called the roll;
quorum established.

2. Amend/Adopt Agenda
MOTION: Director Austin moved, Director Boyett seconded to adopt the Agenda.
Passed: unanimous

3. President Report
• Board Directors please speak into the microphones when speaking so the members can hear

what is being said.
• Board Directors will have ten minutes to introduce a topic from the Agenda and each Board

Director will have three minutes to speak to the topic on the first round and may speak a
second time for no more than three minutes.

4. CEO Report
• Desert Hills Fitness is moving forward. The HVAC is expected in June and an opening and

ribbon cutting is set for July.
• Glass Artist Space at Santa Rita Springs is moving forward. The concrete slab is roughed in for

the plumbing to be completed, the concrete is being patched, framing is continuing, and
plumbing, mechanical, and electrical rough ins are underway. On schedule for an October
opening.

• Del Sol Clubhouse construction of the upper-level restrooms are near completion and waiting
for partitions which are on back order. The remodel work is underway on the main room
(bar/restaurant area).

73

Attachment 3



GVR encourages the Board and members to voice concerns and comments in a professional, business-like, and respectful 
manner. 

• West Center Art Center space for Lapidary and Woodshop is moving forward with the architect
figuring space and cost estimates. This is scheduled for a Work Session in June.

• Las Campanas pool and spa closed beginning June 5 and reopen on June 24.
• Woodshop request for a vacuum system is moving forward.
• CEO Chat went well with 11 people attending. This allowed for a small group discussion with

members.

5. Member Comments: 0

6. Committee Reports
A. Audit – received and placed on file
B. Board Affairs – received and placed on file
C. Fiscal Affairs – received and placed on file
D. Investments – received and placed on file
E. Nominations & Elections – received and placed on file
F. Planning & Evaluation – received and placed on file

7. Consent Agenda
MOTION: Director Boyett moved, Director Bachelor seconded to approve Consent Agenda.
Passed: unanimous
A. Minutes:
 BOD Regular Meeting Minutes: April 26, 2023
 BOD Work Session Minutes: May 17, 2023

B. Financial Statements:
 December (2022), January, February, March, April (2023)

8. New Business
A. Approve Next Steps Del Sol Clubhouse

CEO Somers reviewed the Work Session discussion on next steps for Del Sol Clubhouse and asked
the Board to give staff direction to work with the architect to develop construction documents.
Once documents are developed, the architect will get permits and will go out for bid for
construction. After bids are received, staff will come back to the Board with a recommendation to
award a contract for Del Sol Clubhouse.

MOTION:  Director Dingman moved, Director Blake seconded to continue moving forward with
developing the architectural plans and construction documents for creating a social gathering,
recreation center at the Del Sol Clubhouse.
Passed:  unanimous

Motion to Amend: Director Crothers moved, Director Hillyer seconded to amend the motion to
include an analysis of parking requirements based on the expected usage to the facility and if far
fewer spaces are needed, options on the best use of additional space.
Failed:  5 yes (Austin, Blake, Carden, Crothers, Hillyer) / 6 no

B. Approve 2022 Surplus Transfer
CFO David Webster presented the surplus transfer dollar amount based on the post audit 2022
fiscal year. The surplus calculation is what was approved in 2021 and in accordance with the CPM
to move from Operations Fund to the Initiatives Reserve Fund. Fiscal Affairs Committee
recommended approval by the Board.

74



GVR encourages the Board and members to voice concerns and comments in a professional, business-like, and respectful 
manner. 

MOTION: Director Boyett moved, Director Lawless seconded to approve the 2022 Surplus 
Transfer from Operations to Initiatives Reserve Fund in the amount of $428,596.  
Passed: unanimous 

C. Survey on Cameras at Facilities
Director Hillyer presented the background and survey questions found in the Staff Report.

MOTION: Director Hillyer moved, Director Carden seconded that appropriate GVR staff poll the
GVR membership using the following questions via at least two weekly eBlasts in June 2023:

Background: In early November 2022, at Las Campanas Recreation Center, a GVR member
reported that she was accosted in the shower of the ladies’ locker room by a naked young man
holding a knife.  She screamed, he fled, and he was seen running away from the center, wearing
black shorts. This incident was reported immediately to the Pima County Sheriff’s Department.
Thus far, no suspect has been identified.  This was the first such incident in GVR’s history, as far
as we know.

Later in November 2022, at the regular monthly GVR Board Meeting, the board voted to ask GVR
staff to get quotes for possible security enhancements at GVR.

At GVR’s Regular Board Meeting in April 2023, GVR staff presented three bids for camera
projects at GVR.  One was for 123 cameras for about $153,000, another was for 103 cameras for
about $136,000, and the third was for 84 cameras for about $185,000.  All three systems are
unmonitored—they would maintain recordings of camera images on a 30-day loop.

GVR staff recommended accepting the first described bid—123 cameras for about $153,000.  (Of
these 123 cameras, one-third—41 cameras—would be in GVR parking lots.)  A motion was made
and seconded in support of that GVR staff recommendation, which was rejected by the board.
Concerns were expressed as to cost, number of cameras, and loss of privacy for GVR members.

Several board members expressed interest in getting input from the GVR membership.  A
motion in support of that idea was made and seconded, and was passed by the board.  This
survey is the result.

With that as background, here is the question:

Please choose just ONE of the four options below.

Do you believe that GVR should:

a. Leave things as they have been so far at GVR, with no surveillance cameras at GVR facilities?

b. Add 12 surveillance cameras over the entrances to the 12 ladies’ locker rooms at GVR
facilities?  (These cameras would record images of those entering and leaving the locker rooms,
but no activity inside the locker rooms.)

c. Add 37 surveillance cameras—12 over the entrances to the 12 ladies’ locker rooms, and 25 at
the card-reader entrances to GVR Centers?

d. Add 123 cameras (about $153,000), or 103 cameras (about $136,000), or 84 cameras (about
$185,000), by accepting one of the three bids described above?

Thanks for your answers.  They will be considered by the board. 
in Staff Report 

75



GVR encourages the Board and members to voice concerns and comments in a professional, business-like, and respectful 
manner. 

MOTION TO AMEND: Director Bachelor moved, Director Carden seconded to amend the motion 
for the staff to reevaluate the current proposed survey and possibly come up with a more 
informational survey for the members, and bring the survey and background information back 
to the Board in June for approval.  
Passed: 7 yes / 4 no (Austin, Blake, Crothers, Hillyer)  

Amended Motion Passed: 7 yes/ 4 no (Austin, Blake, Crothers, Hillyer) 

Amended Motion: Approve the staff reevaluate the current proposed survey and provide the 
Board with an informational survey for the members, and bring the survey and background 
information back to the Board in June for approval. 

D. Approval of Ad-Hoc Committee Space Use and Reservation
President Garneau initiated the Ad-Hoc Committee on Space Use and Reservation.

COO Natalie Whitman explained the need for this Ad-Hoc Committee on Space Use stating the
reservation policy for space use/reservations is incomplete with many unspoken and handshake
agreements which does not provide fair access to all the members. The Ad-Hoc Committee will be
comprised of Director Boyett as the Chair, staff liaison is Natalie Whitman, and multiple GVR
members. The committee will develop recommendations for the Board to consider.

Motion: Director Garneau moved, Director Carden seconded to approve the scope of work and
timeline to include examination of existing policies, identification of gaps in the policies,
collecting information from user group outreach activities, drafting policy recommendations for
the Board, and to be fully completed by December 31, 2023.
Passed: 10 yes / 1 no (Hillyer)

E. Photography Club Tenant Improvement
Facility Director David Jund presented the Photography Club Tenant Improvement request at Santa
Rita Springs.

*Director Hillyer left the meeting at 4:03pm.

MOTION: Director Bachelor moved, Director Dingman seconded to approve the Canyon Building 
and Design proposal to build out the GVR Photography Club Tenant Improvement at a cost not 
to exceed $36,000.  
Passed: unanimous 

9. Member Comments - 1 member spoke in support of the Photography Club request for tenant
improvement.

10. Adjournment
MOTION: Director Austin moved, Director Carden seconded to adjourn the meeting at
4:06pm.
Passed: unanimous

76



BIDDER PROPOSAL FORM 

Bidder: ______________________________________ 

Project No. 2022-02-CHCH-01 
Del Sol Clubhouse 

To Green Valley Recreation: 

In compliance with the Notice Inviting Sealed Bids, the undersigned as Bidder proposes to 
furnish all materials, equipment and all labor and methods and do all work necessary for the 
proper construction and completion of the work, in strict and complete accord with the Plans, 
Specifications, Special Provisions and other Contract requirements at the prices set forth in the 
following Bid Schedules for the work generally described as follows: 

Project No. 2022-02-CHCH-01  
Del Sol Clubhouse 

Bidder declares that he/she has carefully examined the location of the proposed work generally 
described and is familiar with the Plans, Specifications, Special Provisions and local conditions 
at the place the work is to be done and understands that all labor, materials and equipment are to 
be furnished, shall be for the prices bid, and that the undersigned, as Bidder, has checked figures 
set forth in the Bid Schedule, and understands that neither Green Valley Recreation nor any of its 
officers or employees will be responsible for any errors or omissions on the part of the 
undersigned Bidder in submitting its completed Proposal. 

Accompanying this Bidder's Proposal is cash, a cashier's check, certified check or Bidder's Bond 
payable to the Green Valley Recreation in the amount of 
_____________________________________________________   dollars ($_____________), 
which is equal to at least ten percent (10%) of the total amount of the bid. The Bidder further 
agrees that if he/she defaults in executing the required Contract Agreement and/or fails to submit 
the required Performance Bond, Payment Bond, Insurance Certificate(s), or executed Contract 
Agreement to Green Valley Recreations specified date, the proceeds of his/her proposal 
guarantee accompanying his/her Bidder's Proposal, be it cash, check or bond may be forfeited to 
Green Valley Recreation, subject to the law, and this Bidder's Proposal, acceptance and the 
Award of the Contract may be considered null and void. If any Surety, upon any bond furnished 
in connection with this Contract, becomes unacceptable to Green Valley Recreation, or if any 
Surety fails to furnish reports as to its financial condition from time to time, as may be requested 
by Green Valley Recreation, the Contractor shall promptly furnish additional security as may be 
required to protect the interests of Green Valley Recreation and any persons supplying labor or 
materials in the prosecution of the work contemplated by this Contract. 

Building Excellence, LLC

77

Attachment 4

FreeText
10% of the total amount of the bid, see attached



BIDDER PROPOSAL FORM 

The Bidder is required to set forth herein the name and location of the place of business of each 
subcontractor who will perform work or labor or render service to the General Contractor on the 
construction of the work or improvement to be performed under the Contract Documents 
attached, and the portion of the work that will be performed by each subcontractor for each 
subcontract in excess of five percent (5%) of the total bid. The Bidder agrees to perform all parts 
of the Contact that have not otherwise been specified herein to be performed by a subcontractor. 
If Green Valley Recreation has reasonable objection to any proposed subcontractor, it may 
request Bidder to submit an acceptable substitute. If Bidder declines to make any substitution, 
then Green Valley Recreation may award the Contract to the next lowest qualified Bidder.  
 
A Contractor shall not substitute subcontractors listed in the original bid except under the 
following conditions, and only with the written approval of Green Valley Recreation Department 
Director or designee.  

1) The subcontractor listed in the bid, when presented a contract based on the general terms, 
conditions and specifications of the bid fails or refuses to enter into contract with the 
Bidder.  

2) The listed subcontractor fails or refuses to perform the subcontract. 

3) The listed subcontractor fails or refuses to meet the bonding requirements, if any, of the 
Contractor.  

4) The listed subcontractor is not appropriately licensed.  

5) The work performed by the subcontractor is unsatisfactory and/or not in accordance with 
the Plans and Specifications.  
 

If the Contractor makes a substitution without prior written approval of the Director or designee, 
Green Valley Recreation may take action against the Contractor to include, but not limited to, 
contract termination and/or disqualification.    
 
The Bidder shall set forth clearly legible figures for the "Firm, Fixed Total Bid Amount" in the 
spaces provided at the bottom of each Bid Schedule.  
 
The Bidder understands that any quantities provided by Green Valley Recreation, or elsewhere in 
the Contract Documents, are approximate and for comparison of bids only, and are subject to 
reasonable increase or decrease, in the opinion of Green Valley Recreation, and Contractor 
proposes to perform all quantities of work as either decreased or increased, in accordance with 
the provisions of the Specifications, at the unit prices it bid.  
 
Green Valley Recreation reserves the right to reject any and all bids or any part thereof, or to 
accept any bids or any part thereof, to waive any irregularity, informality or technicality in any 
bid, or to withhold the award to the extent permitted by law.  Green Valley Recreation further 
reserves the right to advertise for new bids if, in the judgment of Green Valley Recreation, it is in 
the best interests of Green Valley Recreation.  The Bidder agrees that he/she may not withdraw 
his/her bid after accepted by Green Valley Recreation and prior to execution of the Contract by 
the successful Bidder.       

78



BIDDER PROPOSAL FORM  

Subcontractor List                        Bidder: ______________________________ 
 
Subcontractor  Trade 
   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  

Building Excellence, LLC

79

FreeText
(Greater than 5% Contract)

FreeText
GRG Construction Co.

FreeText
Sitework, Concrete

FreeText
HVAC

FreeText
B & J Refrigeration, Inc.

FreeText
Electric

FreeText
JBP Electric, Inc.

FreeText
Cutter Steel & Contracting

FreeText
Steel

FreeText
Catalina Mechanical

FreeText
Plumbing



BIDDER PROPOSAL FORM  

Bid Schedule: Del Sol Clubhouse         Bidder: _____________________________________ 
 
   
01 General Conditions  
     Duration of Project _______ Weeks  
02 Existing Conditions  
03 Concrete  
04 Masonry  
05 Metals  
06 Wood, Plastics, and Composites  
07 Thermal and Moisture Protection  
07.21     Insulation  
08 Openings  
08.10     Doors & Frames  
08.40     Entrances & Storefronts  
09  Finishes  
09.20 Metal Framing & Drywall  
09.30     Tile  
09.51     ACT  
09.60     Flooring  
09.70     Stucco  
09.90     Paint  
10 Specialties  
21 Fire Suppression  
22 Plumbing  
23 Mechanical  
26 Electrical  
27 Communications  
28 Electronic Safety & Security  
31 Earthwork  

Subtotal  
General Liability, Taxes, OH&P  

Total  
 
Please Note All Exclusions from Drawings Below: 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Building Excellence, LLC

80

FreeText
120,865


FreeText
18

FreeText
(Demo)

FreeText
43,638

FreeText
35,250


FreeText
33,250

FreeText
32,700


FreeText
6,500

FreeText
3,624

FreeText
1,624

FreeText
32,015

FreeText
11,290

FreeText


FreeText
20,725

FreeText
102,972

FreeText
27,500

FreeText
8,533

FreeText
1,600

FreeText
26,822


FreeText
5,000

FreeText
11,805

FreeText
3,115

FreeText
16,250

FreeText
48,500

FreeText
65,690

FreeText
145,669

FreeText
N/A

FreeText
N/A

FreeText
253,995

FreeText
Division

FreeText
944,033

FreeText
139,910

FreeText
1,083,943

FreeText
$5,000 Allowance included for Special Inspections.

FreeText
$1,000 Allowance included for Miscellaneous Permits.

FreeText
Bid is guaranteed for 30 days due to market volatility.

FreeText


FreeText
Sealcoat is bid as industry commercial standard.

FreeText





